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Oklahoma Office of Management and Enterprise Services Bidder Instructions
		
[bookmark: _Hlk36722640]Information related to the Bid submission process is contained in these Bidder Instructions.  Prospective Bidders are urged to read the documents provided by the State and these Bidder Instructions carefully.  Failure to do so shall be at the Bidder’s risk.  
[bookmark: _Toc386628794]
1 Definitions
The following terms, when used in these Bidder Instructions, shall have the following meanings:

1.1 Alternate Bid means a Bid which contains an intentional substantive variation to a basic provision, specification, term or condition.

1.2 [bookmark: _Hlk36722732]Amendment means a written change, addition, correction or revision to terms, conditions or requirements by the State agency issuing the Solicitation.

1.3 BAFO means a best and final offer requested by the State agency issuing the Solicitation.

1.4 Bid means an offer a Bidder submits in response to the Solicitation.

1.5 Bidder means an individual or business entity that submits a Bid in response to the Solicitation.

1.6 Bid Packet means the order described in these Bidder Instructions in which all Bidders shall insert the relevant sections of a Bid and which shall be the format for all submitted Bids.

1.7 Business Associate shall have the meaning given to Business Associate under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR § 160.103.

1.8 Business Associate Agreement is the contract between an entity covered under HIPAA and its Business Associate as required under the Privacy Rule, including (but not limited to) 45 CFR § 164.502(e)(2).  

1.9 Contract shall mean the definition of contract as defined in Section A5.

1.10 EGID means Employees Group Insurance Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services. It shall also have the meaning given to the term ‘Covered Entity’ under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR § 160.103 for purposes of this Business Associate Agreement only and to the extent required by law.

1.11 HIPAA refers to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and includes any regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

1.12 OAC means the Oklahoma Administrative Code. 

1.13 OEIBA means the Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Act, 74 O. S. (2011) §1301, et seq.

1.14 OEIBB means the Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board, established by the OEIBA.

1.15 OMES means the Office of Management and Enterprise Services.

1.16 OMES/CP means the Office of Management and Enterprise Services, Central Purchasing.

1.17 PCD means the Primary Care Dentist.

1.18 PPO means the Preferred-Provider Organization.

1.19 RFP means Request for Proposal
2 Instructions Compliance
[bookmark: _Toc386628803]These Bidder Instructions are not part of the Contract; however, compliance with these Instructions is material to the determination of whether a Bid is responsive.  Terms, requirements and specifications may be stated or phrased differently than in a previous solicitation irrespective of past interpretations, practices or customs.  Bid requirements are altered only by written Amendment and verbal communications from any source whatsoever are of no effect.  In no event shall the Bidder’s failure to read and understand a term, condition or requirement in any of the documents provided by the State constitute grounds for a claim after award of the Contract.  
3 Communications and Questions 
The Contracting Officer listed on the Bidder Instructions Cover Page is the only individual the Bidder should contact, or communicate with, regarding any questions or issues with the Solicitation or a Bid.  Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the Bid being considered non-responsive or not considered for further evaluation.
3.1 General Questions
A. Questions should be concise, identify the document, include specific section references and avoid use of tables or special formatting (use simple lists).
B. Information Technology Bids
i If information technology Bidder Instructions are applicable (see Bidder Instructions Cover Page), Bidder may submit general questions concerning Contract or Bid specifications online.  Questions received via any other means will not be addressed.  

ii Registration with the State of Oklahoma for wiki access is located at https://omes.ok.gov/forms/wiki-enrollment-it-procurement. Access should be requested at least five (5) business days prior to the Questions Due Date.  The State is not responsible for a Bidder’s lack of access to the wiki.
C.	Non-Information Technology Bids
If information technology Bidder Instructions are not applicable (see Bidder Instructions Cover Page), Bidder may submit general questions concerning Contract or Bid specifications at the Contracting Officer’s email address shown on the Bidder Instructions Cover Page.  Questions received via any other means will not be addressed.  
3.2 [bookmark: _Toc386628802]Clarification Questions
[bookmark: _Hlk23870320]The State reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to request clarifications of Bid information or to conduct discussions for the purpose of clarification with any or all Bidders.  The purpose of any such discussion shall be to ensure full understanding of the Bid.  If clarifications are made because of such discussion, the Bidder(s) shall put such clarifications in writing. Bidder answers that are outside scope of the clarification questions shall be disregarded.  Oral explanations or instructions provided to a potential Bidder is not binding.

4 Administrative Review
4.1 A Bidder that believes the Contract or Bid requirements or specifications, or Bid Response Due Date, are unnecessarily restrictive or limit competition may submit a request for administrative review, in writing, to the Contracting Officer.  The State shall promptly respond in writing to each written administrative review request, and where appropriate, issue a revision, substitution or clarification through an Amendment.  Requests for administrative review of technical or contractual requirements shall include the reason for the request, supported by information, and any proposed changes.  
4.2 [bookmark: _Toc386628798]If a Bidder fails to notify the Contracting Officer of an error, ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in any of the documents provided by the State that is known to Bidder, or that reasonably should be known by Bidder, the Bidder accepts the risk of submitting a Bid and, if awarded the Contract, shall not be entitled to additional compensation, relief or time by reason of the error or its later correction.  
5 Amendments
5.1 Any Amendment shall be set forth at the same online link as the Solicitation. 
5.2 [bookmark: _Toc386628799]It is the Bidder’s responsibility to check the State’s website frequently for any possible Amendments that may be issued.  The State is not responsible for the Bidder’s failure to download any amendment documents required to complete a Bid.
6 [bookmark: _Toc386628770]Confidentiality Request
[bookmark: _Hlk21956216]Unless otherwise specified in the Oklahoma Open Records Act, Central Purchasing Act, or other applicable law, documents and information a Bidder submits as part of or in connection with a Bid are public records and subject to disclosure after contract award pursuant to OAC 260:115-3-9[footnoteRef:3].  However, a public Bid opening does not make the Bid immediately accessible to the public.  All material submitted by a Bidder becomes the property of the State. No portion of a Bid shall be considered confidential after award of the Contract except, pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.10, information in the Bid determined to be confidential by the State Purchasing Director or delegate.  Typically, a properly submitted confidentiality claim of a potential awardee is reviewed and determined prior to award; a properly submitted confidentiality claim of a non-awarded Bidder is reviewed and determined only when responding to an open records request concerning the Bid.  Additional information regarding information considered confidential by a Bidder is provided in Section 8.2.C below. [3:  OAC 260:115-3-9 is located at
http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00] 


7 [bookmark: _Toc386628796]Acceptance of Content
Unless otherwise provided in Section Four of a Bidder’s response, all Bids shall be firm representations that the responding Bidder has carefully investigated and will comply with all State terms and conditions relating to the Contract.   Upon award of a contract to the successful Bidder, such terms and conditions, as may be amended by the Bid after negotiation, shall become contractual obligations between the parties.  

8 Required Bid Structure
8.1 Preparation of Bid

A. The Bid is required to be structured into separate, labelled and easily identifiable sections using the Bid Packet format provided below.  A Bid submitted using any other format may not be accepted.  The Bid should not contain duplicative content.  Any section of the Bid Packet that is not applicable to the Bid shall have a page inserted to denote the section is not applicable.  For instance, if business references are not required, the Bid should contain a page after the “Business References” section heading that reads “Not Applicable”, “N/A” or some similar notation.
 
B. Minimum Requirements:
i Bidder’s Dental Network, Section 8.1.L.i.
ii Exclusions and Limitations, Section 8 (Refer to Attachment C).
iii PPO Benefit Plan Design, (if PPO plan(s) offered), Section 9 (Refer to Attachment C).
iv [bookmark: _GoBack]Prepaid or Managed Benefit Plan Design, (if prepaid/managed plan(s) offered), Section 10 (Refer to Attachment C).
v Member ID Cards, Section 8.1.L.x. (if I.D. cards used).
vi Network Provider Directory, Section 13 (Refer to Attachment C). 
C. Exhibit Listing
i General Information
a. Exhibit 1 Census Data
b. Exhibit 4 OEIBB Commercial Carriers Policy
ii Exhibits Required for Bid Submission
a. Exhibit 5 Dental Plan Premium Quote
b. Exhibit 6 PPO Dental Plan Design (if applicable for Bidder)
c. Exhibit 7 Prepaid Managed Dental Plan Design (if applicable for Bidder)
d. Exhibit 8 Dental Rate Development
e. Exhibit 9 Geo-Access Dental Network Analysis
f. Exhibit 10 Dental Provider Network Bid Submission
g. Exhibit 11 PPO and Prepaid Managed Network Utilization

D. To participate, the Bidder must offer a dental option which meets the Solicitation Specifications. Bidders may offer up to two (2) dental plans with any combination of PPO and/or prepaid/managed plans.

E. As of January 31, 2020, the OEIBA Program for dental coverage included:

	Category
	Total Lives

	Total Primary Members
	138,802

	Total Dependents
	87,475


i. Refer to Exhibit 1 Census Data for more details.

F. As referenced in subsection 8.2.H, the following information is required to be included in the Bid applying to all proposals (PPO, Prepaid/Managed):
i Fraud and Abuse Investigations
a. Describe how Bidder will accomplish review for fraud and abuse investigations.
ii Network Changes
a. Describe how Bidder will provide notification to members of changes in the Supplier’s network.
b. Provide the third party company information (i.e. name, location, contact information) that members appeal to for grievances, if applicable.
c. How many grievances have you had regarding the network in the prior calendar year per 1,000 members?
iii Marketing and Communications Guidelines
a. Describe how Bidder will provide notification to members of changes in the Supplier’s network.
iv Internal Grievance Procedures
a. Provide the third party company information (i.e. name, location, contact information) that members appeal to for grievances, if applicable
b. How many grievances have you had regarding the network in the prior calendar year per 1,000 members?

G. As referenced in subsection 8.2.H, the Bidder must provide the following information regarding member satisfaction surveys.
i Member Service Quality Assurance
a. Does the Bidder survey its members regarding their satisfaction with its customer service and claims processing?  If so, attach a copy of the most recent survey instrument completed and a summary of the results.
b. Describe the frequency and methodology of the Supplier’s member satisfaction surveys.  
c. What percentage of all members are typically surveyed each year?
d. What is the overall member satisfaction rate from the most recent survey? 
e. How is that rate measured?
f. What are members least satisfied with?
g. Describe any plans to improve upon that area.

H. As referenced in subsection 8.2.I, pricing shall be proposed as follows:
i Price and Cost are to be submitted on Exhibit 5 Dental Plan Premium Quote. Refer to Exhibit 4 OEIBB Commercial Carrier Policy for relevant details regarding administrative fee.
ii Premium Calculation
a. Describe the methodology used for developing the rates being proposed. Exhibit 8 Dental Rate Development must correspond to Exhibit 5 Dental Plan Premium Quote.

I. As referenced in subsection 8.2.K, the following financial information must be included:
i Provide copies of audited financial statements for the Bidder’s last two (2) fiscal years immediately preceding the date of its response. The financial statements should include, but not limited to, Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Statement of Retained Earnings or Statement of Stockholders’ Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Financial Statements. The Bidder further agrees to be available for reasonable inquiry by EGID regarding these financial statements.
ii Identify the Bidder’s independent auditor.
iii Specify the name and address of any sponsoring or parent corporation or others who provide financial support to the Bidder, or affirm there are none.
iv Describe any understandings, legal relationships or financial agreements with respect to sponsorship or other financial support of the Bidder with any other entity, i.e., guarantees, letters of credit, etc. What are maximum limits of additional financial support? 
v EGID expects that the Bidder will maintain adequate levels of corporate/general liability insurance. Provide details on the levels of coverage the Bidder maintains.

J. As referenced in subsection 8.2.M, the following company information shall be included:
i Bidder Identification
a. Bidder’s legal name
b. Address (include city, state and zip code)
c. Office location responsible for this account. If this office will be located outside of Oklahoma, explain the Bidder’s plans to interact closely with EGID.
d. Trade name that the Bidder intends to use for marketing purposes
e. The name and contact information for the Account Manager who will be assigned to the OEIBA Program. Include years of experience, number of other clients, and the size and industry of said clients.
f. The name and contact information for the highest-ranking official with direct involvement with the OEIBA Program’s account.
g. The name and contact information for the Bidder’s designated personnel authorized to enter into BAFO competitive negotiations.  In the event the Bidder’s designated personnel changes, the Bidder shall notify OMES/CP immediately in writing.
h. Outline the account management team that will be assigned to EGID upon contract award.
i. Are any services outsourced?
i. If so, provide name, location and function of the company.
ii Bidder Profile
a. Provide a profile of Bidder’s dental insurance business for each of the latest three (3) calendar years (2018, 2019, and 2020):
	
	[bookmark: _Toc513649603]Calendar Year 2018
	[bookmark: _Toc513649604]Calendar Year 2019
	[bookmark: _Toc513649605]Calendar Year 2020 
(As of 4/1/2020)

	[bookmark: _Toc513649606]Number of clients (employer groups, state programs, etc.)
	
	
	

	[bookmark: _Toc513649607]Number of enrollees covered
	
	
	

	[bookmark: _Toc513649608]Number of public sector clients
	
	
	

	[bookmark: _Toc513649609]Average number of public sector enrollees
	
	
	

	[bookmark: _Toc513649610]Number of plans terminated
	
	
	

	[bookmark: _Toc513649611]Average number of members in terminated plans
	
	
	



iii Web Capabilities
a. What is the Bidder’s web address?
b. How often is the Bidder’s website updated? 
c. How often does scheduled downtime occur?
d. Complete the below chart regarding capabilities for participants on the Supplier’s website.
	Service
	Y/N
	Comments

	Provider locator
	
	

	Plan benefit information
	
	

	Out-of-network claim form
	
	

	Print I.D. cards online
	
	

	Request additional or replacement ID cards to be mailed
	
	

	Online Explanation of Benefits (EOBs)
	
	

	Claims history and claims status
	
	

	How long is claim history accessible online for a termed member, if applicable?
	
	

	Educational information about dental (preventive care and health)
	
	

	Cost estimation/budgeting tools
	
	

	Deductible, out-of-pocket, and maximum tracking
	
	

	Member grievance resolution
	
	

	Members can download and print forms
	
	

	Is a mobile app available?
	
	

	Other, describe.
	
	



iv Bidder Operating Staff
a. Attach a complete organizational chart for the Bidder, including all departments/functions listed above, as well as lines of authority, and relationships among the Bidder’s Board of Directors, administration, dental services, and other functions. If expansions or changes are anticipated, show as much detail as possible reflecting the changes.
v Systems Eligibility
a. Identify the systems the Bidder will use including but not limited to, eligibility and claims processing systems.
b. Identify any changes to systems that Bidder will make in order to fulfill this RFP.

K. As referenced in subsection 8.2.M, the following implementation information must be included:
i New Supplier Transition Process. If the Bidder is not currently a Dental Supplier in the OEIBA Program, provide the following information:
a. Provide the Transition Manager name and contact information.
b. How many other implementation projects will the Transition Manager work on in addition to this contract?
c. Provide a copy of a typical implementation project plan.

L. As referenced in subsection 8.2.M, the following dental information shall be included:
i Dental Network.
a. Describe the structure, composition and size of the Bidder’s network in Oklahoma.
i. If the Bidder has multiple networks, specify which network(s) Bidder proposes for this contract.
b. Provide an Excel spreadsheet of the Bidder’s current provider network using 10a and/or 10b in Exhibit 10 Dental Provider Network Bid Submission. Those dentists accepting new enrollees must be clearly identified by populating column “I” as applicable. In order for a dentist to be listed in the provider directories as accepting new patients, that dentist must have at least fifty (50) open patient slots. If a dentist has fewer than fifty (50) open slots and desires to be listed as accepting new patients, the exact number of open slots available at the time of directory publication must be listed.
c. Complete Exhibit 11 PPO and Prepaid Managed Network Utilization.
d. Identify any sub-contracted or leased network(s) that would be involved in any capacity with this OEIBA Program. Provide details including company name, location, function, etc.
e. How many providers, by region and location, have been sanctioned and/or removed from the Bidder’s networks within the last three (3) rolling years?
f. Indicate the percentage of the Bidder’s providers retained based on length of contract:
i. Over 3 years (________ %)
ii. 2 to 3 years (______ %)
iii. Less than 2 Years (_______ %)
g. How many providers and specialists have terminated contracts with the Bidder in the last calendar year at the provider’s request?  State the reason(s) for the termination.
h. What has been the turnover rate of providers in the Bidder’s network during the last calendar year (due to all reasons)?  Express as a percent of total providers. Separate turnovers by voluntary and involuntary.
i. Describe any financial incentive programs (such as bonuses, penalties, or other) for providers.
1. Is the member required to select a PCD? (Answer for PPO and/or Prepaid.)
a. If so, how often are members allowed to change the PCD?
2. Can family members residing at the same address use a different PCD?
ii Provider Satisfaction Surveys. Provide a copy of the most recent provider satisfaction survey. Include details on percentage of providers surveyed. If the Supplier participated with the OEIBA Program in 2019, the data should be specific to the OEIBA Program. Otherwise, the data should be for the book of business.
iii Geo-Access Analysis
a. Using the census data provided (See Exhibit 1 Census Data), conduct a geo-access analysis for each applicable network (See 9b in Exhibit 9 Geo-Access Dental Network Analysis) with the following assumptions:
i. Conduct the geo-access for each zip code identified.
ii. Geo-access mapping is to be based on all participants currently enrolled in the dental plan(s). Do not exclude participants not residing in a current service area.
iii. Provider access standards are:
1. Generalists: one (1) within 10 miles
2. Specialists: one (1) within 20 miles. Specialists are to include: 
a. Endodontists; 
b. Periodontists; 
c. Orthodontists;
d. Oral surgeons; 
e. General pediatrics; or 
f. All other specialists.
iv  Credentialing and Peer Review. Identify which physician credentialing criteria below the Bidder actively monitors on an ongoing basis and provide frequency that the Bidder re-credentials providers. 
a. State Licensure 
b. Board Certification 
c. DEA License 
d. Verification of Medical Education and Training 
e. Admitting Privileges at Network Hospitals 
f. Office Hours 
g. Malpractice Coverage
i. Proof of malpractice insurance
ii. Malpractice history
h. Reputation 
i. History of litigations/disciplinary action
j. Fraud/felony convictions
k. On-site Audit before Contracting 
l. Other:  Describe
v PPO Benefit Plan Design
a. If the Bidder offers a PPO dental plan, complete Exhibit 7 PPO Dental Plan Design.
b. What procedures or practices must be preauthorized (e.g., when is a treatment plan requested)?
i. If so, what is the dollar threshold?
c. Does the Bidder collect diagnosis codes?
i. If yes, how is the information used?
d. Will benefits be available to employees outside the State of Oklahoma and to what extent?
i. If yes, describe the Bidder networks and plan of benefits that would be available to participants that live outside the State of Oklahoma. 
vi Prepaid or Managed Benefit Plan Design
a. If the Bidder offers a prepaid or managed dental plan, complete Exhibit Title Prepaid Managed Dental Plan Design.
b. Will benefits be available to employees outside the State of Oklahoma and to what extent? 
i. If yes, describe the Bidder networks and plan of benefits that would be available to participants that live outside the State of Oklahoma. 
c. What procedures or practices must be preauthorized (e.g., when is a treatment plan requested)?
i. If preauthorization is required, what is the dollar threshold?
d. Does the Bidder collect diagnosis codes?  
i. If so, how is the information used?
vii Member Services
a. Provide the cell center hours.
b. How are after-hour phone calls handled?
c. How does the Bidder’s Member Services (call center) accommodate non-English speaking and hearing impaired callers?
d. Pre-enrollment information
i. Does the Bidder have a pre-enrollment phone number and/or email address for potential OEIBA Program members to inquire about the plan? 
1. If so, provide the phone number and/or email address and any identifying information that a member must provide upon calling the Bidder before enrollment. 
ii. Does the Bidder have a pre-enrollment website for potential OEIBA Program members to inquire about the plan?
1. If so, provide the website and any identifying information that a member must provide upon selecting the Bidder website before enrollment. 
e. Provide the standards that the Bidder’s Member Services staff achieved during 2019 in the following categories:
i. Average telephone answer time (in seconds)
ii. Average telephone hold time (in seconds)
iii. Average length of call (in minutes)
iv. Average calls per month
v. Abandoned calls (hang ups, average per month)
vi. First Call Resolution Rate.  First Call Resolution Rate is the percentage of telephone inquiries completely resolved within a “window period” of time. A call is considered “resolved” when the same participant or a family member under the same subscriber ID has not contacted the administrator's customer service facility again regarding the same issue within sixty (60) calendar days of the initial call.
f. Describe the Bidder’s internal performance standards for accuracy, responsiveness and courtesy and how are they measured.
i. Are measures taken for poor or unacceptable performance?
ii. What number of customer service representatives has the Bidder dedicated to this contract? 
1. How are they measured?
g. What is the ratio of full-time customer service representatives to covered members?
viii Compliance and Privacy Procedures and Standards
a. Bidder shall describe its compliance procedures in general.  Specifically explain how it will comply with the privacy and security standards, interface with EGID as a Plan Sponsor, and maintain confidentiality/privacy of dental members’ information.
ix  Member Education
a. Describe in detail the methods used by the Bidder to educate and communicate the proper use of the plan to members. Describe all that apply, including:
i. Enrollment Meetings 
ii. Mass Mailings
iii. Mass media
iv. Provider Directories
v. Interactive Phone, IVR
vi. Marketing Brochures
vii. Website and Mobile Application
viii. Welcome calls (or other communication method) to new members
ix. Other, describe
x Member I.D. Cards
a. Are I.D. cards required to receive services? 
i. If not, explain the method for communicating the employee I.D. / account number to the employees. 
ii. If so, furnish a copy of the I.D. card.
xi Security and Business Continuity
a. Describe the physical protection of the Bidder’s facilities including access authorization to areas housing sensitive information and equipment.
b. Describe the Bidder’s approach to authorizing systems access, User ID and password controls including information on encryption, forced change/expiration of passwords and User ID elimination when access is to be terminated.
xii Contingency and Disaster Recovery Plans
a. Provide a general summary of the Bidder’s contingency plans that illustrate its ability to respond to the following items. Do not provide sensitive or confidential company information.
i. Rapid increase in enrollment; 
ii. Rapid decrease in enrollment; 
iii. Loss of one or more facilities;
iv. Voluntary provider termination; 
v. Work stoppage;
vi. Financial insolvency; 
vii. Loss of license or contract revocation;
viii. Pandemic Health Emergency
b. Describe the disaster recovery protocols, procedures and backup systems in place, including the ability to rapidly shift phone service and claims processing to alternative sites. 
c. Provide frequency of disaster recovery testing.
xiii Claims Administration
a. Claims Processing.  Provide the following information for the most recent Plan Year:
i. Turnaround time.
ii. Financial accuracy rate.
iii. Overall accuracy rate.
iv. Is the Bidder’s dental claims system fully integrated and automated for in-network and out-of-network claims processing?  Does it have procedures that prevent direct member billing (balanced billing)? If so, describe the procedures.  If not, how will the Bidder ensure members are not billed inappropriately for covered services? 
v. Describe in detail the Bidder’s claim cost-control program.
1. How are overcharges detected for medically unnecessary care or provider abuses?  
2. What program has the Bidder developed to address special areas of concern?  
3. Who performs these functions?
vi. Does the Bidder routinely send out EOBs or only upon member request? 
vii. Describe in detail the dental plan’s fraud prevention capabilities/ claims auditing.

M. As referenced in subsection 8.2.M, the following information regarding Lawsuits and Litigation shall be provided:
i Disclose, unless prohibited by securities law, any prior lawsuits and litigation involving alleged or actual violations of administrative rules and hearings, or any lawsuits, litigation, or administrative proceedings, threatened or pending, involving the Bidder and any person or entity, the State of Oklahoma or any political subdivisions, and/or any state officer and/or any state employee acting in the capacity of a state employee arising from services rendered that are the same or similar to the work defined in this RFP, and any settlements, compromises (if confidential, a statement of that fact) or Judgments of Record resulting from the foregoing described litigation or administrative proceedings for the past five (5) years or affirm there are none.
ii List and disclose contract cancellations or negligent causes of action that arose from work performed that is the same or similar to work identified in the specifications listed that was initiated by persons or entities against the Bidder that resulted in a settlement with or judgment against the Bidder in any jurisdiction in the United States in an amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) or more within the previous five (5) years, or affirm there are none. 
iii Disclose any data security breaches and specifically HIPAA security breaches that required notification to affected persons or a regulatory authority within the previous three years.
iv List and describe any current malpractice suits filed against the Bidder or a provider in the Bidder’s network.

N. As referenced in subsection 8.2.M, the following Reporting information shall be included:
i The statistical information is believed to be accurate for the date specified but is not intended as, and must not be considered, an express or implied warranty by EGID.  EGID and the State shall not be liable for any damages resulting from inaccuracies contained in statistical information. 
ii The OEIBB is interested in increased OEIBA Program transparency to the public. Indicate (by report number in Exhibit 12 Minimum Required Reporting List ) which of the reports the Supplier already makes public in some form or to which the Supplier agrees to allow the OEIBB to make aggregate OEIBA Program financial data and individual Plan network summaries public at its quarterly Board meetings.
O. Section 125
i An Internal Revenue Code, Section 125 Cafeteria plan with a Flexible Spending Account (FSA) for medical reimbursement is offered to Oklahoma State education and local government active employees.  Within the FSA, a debit card program allows a participating member to use a pre-loaded debit card that works like any other debit MasterCard or debit Visa Card, except that it is charged only against the cardholder’s personal FSA balance, not against a general bank balance.  Exhibit 2 Section 125 Debit Card File Layout is the file format required by the current debit card company. OMES requests that the Bidder interface with the debit card company and provide paid claims utilization on a weekly basis.  Based on this request, does the Supplier agree to provide information, where available, to assist in verifying purchases made through State sponsored FSAs?
ii Currently, there are approximately 900 participating employers, each with unique Section 125 plans.

P. Readiness Reviews
 OMES/CP and EGID may conduct scheduled meetings to the Supplier for purposes of testing the readiness of the Supplier.
i Submission of a proposal in response to this RFP commits the bidding Supplier to cooperate and participate in these reviews, as required by EGID.
ii These reviews will take no more than one (1) business day each. EGID staff members, as well as consultants for the State as needed, will interview appropriate dental plan personnel in all major organizational areas, and will perform documented and process reviews where appropriate. 
iii Details of the schedule(s), agenda(s), and content of the readiness review(s) will be distributed to the Suppliers in a timely manner.  
iv Prior to the Readiness Review meetings, EGID may submit a written list of questions to the Supplier.  These questions should be completed by the Supplier and returned to EGID no later than the time scheduled for the Supplier’s meeting.

8.2 Bid Packet Format  

A. Section One:  Cover Page
A dated cover page or transmittal letter that identifies the Solicitation and the Bidder and provides Bidder contact information.
B. Section Two:  Required Forms, Certifications and Disclosures
i	Completed “Responding Bidder Information” form set forth and accompanying required documentation. 

ii	Completed “Certification for Competitive Bid and Contract” form.
iii	Bidder shall additionally provide in this section of its Bid, disclosure of (1) any public contract terminated by a governmental entity or suits or claims against the Bidder for failure to perform in connection with a public contract (including any company which a Bidder has merged with or acquired that will be performing services or providing products if awarded the Contract); (2) any contractual relationship or any other relevant contact with any State personnel or another Bidder or Supplier involved in the development of a Bidder’s response to the Solicitation; (3)  the name of any officer, director or agent of the Bidder who is also an employee of the State of Oklahoma or any of its agencies; (4) the name of any state employee who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Bidder firm or any of its branches and (5) any activity or interest that conflicts or may conflict with the best interest of the State, including but not limited to any person or entity currently under contract with or seeking to do business with the State, its employees or any other third-party individual or entity awarded a contract with the State.  Any conflict of interest shall, at the sole discretion of the State, be grounds for rejection of the Bid or partial or whole termination of the Contract.

iv	Certificate of Insurance and Workers’ Compensation form.

v	Completed Vendor Payee form.

vi	Any information requested in connection with a Solicitation regarding subcontractors a Bidder proposes to use in performance of the resulting contract.

vii	Signed Amendment(s), if any, located at the same online link as the Solicitation.

The Bidder shall acknowledge agreement with each Amendment, if any, by inserting the Amendment in this section, signed by or on behalf of the Bidder.    
C. Section Three:  Bid Portions Requested to be Held Confidential
i	If the Bid Packet contains information the Bidder believes to be confidential, the Bid Packet shall be conspicuously marked on the outside to indicate it contains information considered confidential.  

ii	Any portion of the Bid that the Bidder requests be held confidential shall be inserted in this section and the Bidder must specifically identify, on each page, the specific information considered confidential and otherwise fully comply with OAC 260:115-3-9[footnoteRef:4] which additionally requires a Bidder to enumerate the specific grounds, based on applicable laws which support treatment of the information as exempt from disclosure and explain why disclosure is not in the best interest of the public.  Additional information regarding information considered confidential by a Bidder is provided in Section 6 above. [4:  OAC 260:115-3-9 is located at
http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00] 


iii	A Bid marked in total, as proprietary and/or confidential shall not be considered confidential.  Likewise, unless specifically referenced otherwise, resumes, pricing, marketing materials, business references, Voluntary Product Accessibility Templates, additional terms proposed by a Bidder and subcontractor information are not confidential and are not exempt from disclosure under the Oklahoma Open Records Act.  The foregoing list is intended to address information often marked confidential that is not exempt from disclosure and is not an exhaustive list.

iv	ANY INFORMATION MARKED AS CONFIDENTIAL AND EMBODIED ELSEWHERE IN A BID RATHER THAN INSERTED IN THIS SECTION OF THE BID PACKET WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED CONFIDENTIAL AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE WITHOUT FURTHER REVIEW.  THE STATE HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY TO INDEPENDENTLY REVIEW AN ENTIRE BID FOR A CONFIDENTIALITY CLAIM.  LIKEWISE, CONFIDENTIALITY CLAIMS OF A BIDDER WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED IF A BID DOES NOT COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF OAC 260:115-3-9 AND THE INFORMATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO STATE LAW.  
D. Section Four:  Requested Exceptions to Terms
[bookmark: _Hlk36723154]i	Any requested exception or revision to terms or conditions provided by the State  shall be inserted in this section using the table provided at the end of these Bidder Instructions.  If no exceptions or revisions are requested, the Bid should reflect that by either submitting the table with no additions to it or by marking the table “N/A”.  Each requested exception or revision shall identify (i) the document and section reference of the specific affected term and (ii) either that the term is inapplicable and should be intentionally omitted or offer alternative language if the Bidder is requesting revision of the term.  Some examples are provided on the table for illustrative purposes only and, if not deleted in a submitted Bid, will be disregarded. 
ii	A clarification question is not an exception and any clarification included in this section will be disregarded.   
[bookmark: _Hlk36723238]iii	If the Bid contains a copy of existing terms between the Bidder and the State that the Bidder believes are applicable to the Acquisition, the Bidder need not take exceptions to the General Terms; however, the remainder of terms and contents of a document provided by the State including, without limitation, all attachments, appendices and exhibits remain applicable and are not supplanted by such existing terms.  Therefore, any exception to portions of the Solicitation or other related documents, other than General Terms must be included in this section as an exception.  
iv	THE STATE HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY TO INDEPENDENTLY REVIEW AN ENTIRE BID FOR EXCEPTIONS AND ANY EXCEPTION EMBODIED IN ANOTHER SECTION OF THE BID OR IN A FORMAT OTHER THAN THE PROVIDED TABLE WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.  LIKEWISE, AN EXCEPTION EXPRESSING ONLY GENERAL DISAGREEMENT WITH A TERM OR A GENERAL EXCEPTION TO ANY STATE TERMS OR CONDITIONS, WITHOUT SUGGESTED ALTERNATIVE WORDING OR IDENTIFYING THAT THE TERM SHOULD BE INTENTIONALLY OMITTED, WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.
E. Section Five:  Additional Bidder Terms
Any additional terms that the Bidder requests be applicable to the Contract shall be inserted in this section and shall be provided in Word format.  THE STATE HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY TO INDEPENDENTLY REVIEW AN ENTIRE BID FOR ADDITIONAL TERMS AND ANY SUCH TERMS NOT SUBMITTED IN THIS SECTION OF THE BID SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED.  Should a Bidder be awarded a Contract, neither the State nor a customer shall be required to execute additional documents not included in a Bid. For example, if a Bidder typically uses an ordering document in connection with an acquisition, the ordering document template shall be included in the Bid.  
F. Section Six:  Existing Terms between Bidder and State
A copy of any existing terms, mutually executed by the Bidder and the State, that the Bidder believes are applicable to the Acquisition shall be inserted in this section.  Any existing terms not submitted in this section of the Bid shall not be considered.
G. Section Seven:  Executive Summary
The Bidder’s executive summary shall be inserted in this section.  Marketing information, general company information and other similar information should be included in the executive summary and should not be included in other sections of the Bid.  
H. Section Eight:  Response to Specifications and Requirements
i The portion of the Bid to be inserted in this section shows the ability of the Bidder to meet or exceed any Contract and Bid specifications and requirements.  
ii If a VPAT is required, the URL link to the Bidder’s VPAT shall be inserted in this section at the Bid Packet page referencing the VPAT.  
iii If an information technology Security Certification and Accreditation Assessment is required, the completed Assessment shall be inserted in this section at a Bid Packet page referencing the Security Accreditation Assessment.  The Assessment is located online at  https://omes.ok.gov/sites/g/files/gmc316/f/SecurityCertification-R_0.xlsx.    
iv If service level agreements are required, the proposed service level agreements shall be inserted in this section at a Bid Packet page referencing the proposed Service Level Agreements.

v If a Statement of Work is required, the proposed draft shall be inserted in this section at a Bid Packet page referencing the proposed Statement of Work.

I. Section Nine:  Pricing 
Pricing associated with the Bid shall be inserted in this section and shall be in the required structure set forth above in Section 8.1, if any.
J. Section Ten:  Offer of Value-Added Products and/or Services
If a Bid includes an offer of value-added products and/or services, such offer shall be inserted in this section and include associated pricing and any other information relevant to such value-added offer.  However, the State is not obligated to purchase value-added products or services.
K. Section Eleven:  Financial Information 
Any required financial and associated information shall be inserted in this section.  
L. Section Twelve:  Business References
[bookmark: _Hlk2165721]Any required business references and associated information shall be inserted in this section.  
M.	Section Thirteen:  Additional Company Information
[bookmark: _Toc386628797]Any additional required company information shall be inserted in this section.  
9 Submission of Bid 
9.1 IT IS THE BIDDER’S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY TO SUBMIT INFORMATION IN THE BID AS REQUESTED AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE OKLAHOMA CENTRAL PURCHASING ACT AND ASSOCIATED OAC TITLE 260 RULES[footnoteRef:5] INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION OAC 260:115-3-7 AND 260:115-3-11[footnoteRef:6].  A submitted Bid is rendered as a legal offer and is required to be in strict conformity with these Bidder Instructions.  [5:  Oklahoma Administrative Code Title 260, Chapter 115 is located at http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00]  [6:  OAC 260:115-3-7 and OAC 260:115-3-11 are located at http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00] 

9.2 [bookmark: _Hlk35866119]Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, a Bid shall be submitted via email to OMESCPeBID@omes.ok.gov. In person, commercial carrier or facsimile submittals shall not be accepted.  The email Bid shall contain the Solicitation Number, Bid Response Due Date and Time in the subject line of the email. The State is not responsible for incorrect link information or inability to access a submitted Bid.

9.3 Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, this subsection is intentionally omitted.
9.4 Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, this subsection is intentionally omitted. 
9.5 [bookmark: _Hlk36723473]Unless otherwise specified, (i) manufacturers’ names, brand names, information, and/or catalog numbers listed in a specification are for informational purposes and not intended to limit competition and (ii) a Bidder may offer any brand for which it is an authorized representative, which meets or exceeds the specification for any item(s).  Bidder shall offer new items of current design and technology unless a document provided by the State in connection with the Solicitation specifies older models or versions, or used, reconditioned, or remanufactured products are acceptable.  Warranties in either case should be the same.  However, if a Bid is based on equivalent products, the Bid is required to state the manufacturer’s name and number.  The Bid shall also explain in detail the reason(s) why the proposed equivalent will meet the specifications and not be considered an exception thereto. Reference to literature submitted with a previous Bid shall not satisfy a specification or requirement associated with the present Bid.  Any previous solicitation or resultant contract shall not be depended upon, perceived or interpreted to have any relevance to the present Bid.  
9.6 Bids shall remain a firm offer for a minimum of one hundred twenty (120) days after the Bid Response Due Date.  Any usage amounts provided by the State are estimates and are not guaranteed to be purchased.
9.7 Unless specified otherwise, a Bidder shall submit a firm, fixed price for the term, including optional renewal terms, of the Contract.  The Bidder guarantees unit prices to be correct.  
9.8 In accordance with 74 O.S. §85.40, all travel expenses to be incurred by Supplier in performance of the Contract shall be included in the total Bid price/contract amount. Travel expenses include, but are not limited to, transportation, lodging and meals.  Examples of other miscellaneous travel expenses are referenced in §10.14 of the Statewide Accounting Manual[footnoteRef:7].    [7:  Statewide Accounting Manual is located at https://omes.ok.gov/sites/g/files/gmc316/f/StatewideAccountingManual.pdf.] 

9.9 A Bid containing early payment discounts may be evaluated when making an award.  If a Bidder wishes to offer an early payment discount, the Bid must include available discount percentages for no less than ten (10) days payment, increasing in five (5) day increments up to thirty (30) days.  The discount percentages shall be expressed in a half or whole percentage, with the minimum discount percentage being 0.5%.  The State is not obligated to utilize an offered discount.  
9.10 All costs incurred by the Bidder for Bid preparation and participation shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder and the Bidder shall not be reimbursed for any such costs.  By submitting a Bid, Bidder agrees not to make any claims for damages or have any rights to damages in connection with the Bid.
9.11 For consistency of contract structure, certain State terms may be marked “Intentionally Omitted”.  If so, no response is expected.
9.12 After review of a Bidder's submitted documents and information, the State may require additional terms in which customer data will be accessed, processed or stored by a Supplier.
9.13 Each Bid is required to include relevant information for a designated contact to receive notice, approvals and requests allowed or required by the terms of the Contract.
10 Bid Withdrawal, Bid Change and Alternate Bid
10.1 Except as authorized by the State Purchasing Director after proof by the Bidder that a significant error by the Bidder exists in the Bid, a Bid may not be withdrawn after the Bid Response Due Date and Time.  If the Bidder wishes to withdraw a Bid prior to the Bid Response Due Date and Time, the Bidder shall submit a written withdrawal request to the State Purchasing Director in accordance with OAC 260:115-3-13[footnoteRef:8] except that the request shall be emailed to the email address listed in Section 9 above, due to the COVID-19 outbreak.  [8:  OAC 260:115-3-13 is located at http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00.] 

10.2 [bookmark: _Toc474321210]Except as requested by the State, a Bid may not be changed after the Bid Response Due Date and Time.  If the Bidder needs to change a submitted Bid prior to the Bid Response Due Date and Time, the Bidder shall withdraw the originally submitted Bid and a new Bid shall be submitted to the State by the Bid Response Due Date and Time in accordance with Section 9 and include the following statement on the superseding Bid cover page: “THIS BID SUPERSEDES THE BID PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED” AND “SUPERSEDING BID” MUST APPEAR IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF THE EMAIL.
10.3 A Bidder may submit one or more Alternate Bids.  Any Alternate Bid submitted shall be a complete Bid and shall be clearly identified as an Alternate Bid in the subject line of the email.  If more than one Alternate Bid is submitted, the identification in the email subject line shall refer to Alternate Bid 1, Alternate Bid 2, etc. 

11 Bid Rejection 
11.1 [bookmark: _Hlk38031928][bookmark: _Hlk38031883]The Bidder’s failure to submit required information may cause its Bid to be rejected.  Additionally, a Bid received after the Bid Response Due Date and Time SHALL BE DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE AND SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED unless the State Purchasing Director has authorized acceptance of Bids due to a significant error or incident that occurred which affected the receipt of a Bid.[footnoteRef:9]   Failure to comply with these Bidder Instructions may result in the Bid being disqualified from evaluation.   Unless opened for identification, Bids received late will be returned unopened in a timely manner. [9:  OAC 260:115-3-11] 

11.2 A Bid may be rejected when the Bidder imposes terms or conditions that would modify requirements or limit the Bidder’s liability to the State.  Other possible reasons for rejection of Bids are listed in OAC 260:115-3-5 and 260:115-7-32(h)[footnoteRef:10]. [10:    OAC 260:115-3-5 and 260:115-7-32 is located at:
http://www.oar.state.ok.us/oar/codedoc02.nsf/frmMain?OpenFrameSet&Frame=Main&Src=_75tnm2shfcdnm8pb4dthj0chedppmcbq8dtmmak31ctijujrgcln50ob7ckj42tbkdt374obdcli00_
] 

11.3 Attempts to impose unacceptable conditions on the State or impose alternative terms not in the best interest of the State shall not be tolerated.  Continued attempts to impose unacceptable conditions or terms on the State shall result in a determination of non-responsiveness of the Bid.
11.4 Whenever the terms “shall”, “must”, “will”, or “is required” are used, the specification being referred to is a mandatory specification.  Failure to meet any mandatory specification may cause rejection of a Bid.
11.5 [bookmark: _Toc474321203]Whenever the terms “can”, “may”, or “should” are used, the specification being referred to is a desirable item and failure to provide any item so termed shall not be cause for rejection of a Bid.
12 Bid Public Opening
[bookmark: _Toc386628790]Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, there will be no physical Bid openings at this time. Public Bid openings will be conducted on a per request basis via Zoom. Zoom information will be provided to anyone requesting a public Bid Opening.
13 Evaluation
13.1	A responsive Bid will proceed to the evaluation process.  Unless specified that “best value” criteria will be used to determine award, Bids shall be evaluated on “lowest and best” criteria.
13.2	Pursuant to OAC 260:115-7-32, Bidder past performance as a Supplier may be considered when evaluating a Bid.
13.3	Pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.44E, a Bid submitted by a service-disabled veteran business that does business in Oklahoma or maintains an Oklahoma office or place of business will be given a three- percentage point bonus preference in scoring the Bid.
13.4	The State reserves the right to require demonstrations, clarifications and additional documentation from any or all responding Bidders.  Each Bidder should be prepared to participate in oral presentations and demonstrations to define the Bid, to introduce the Bidder’s team and to respond to questions regarding the Bid if required by the State prior to award.
14 Competitive Negotiations of Offers
14.1 The State reserves the right to negotiate with none or one or more Bidders responding to the Solicitation and may negotiate any or all content of the Bid to obtain the best value for the State. Negotiations may be conducted in person, in writing or by electronic means and shall only be conducted with potentially acceptable Bids. 
14.2 Negotiations could entail discussions on products, services, pricing, contract terminology or any other issue material to an award decision or that may mitigate the State’s risks.  The State shall consider all issues arising from the Bid to be negotiable and will not be artificially constrained by internal corporate policies.  In the event of prolonged contract negotiations due to the number and/or significance of exceptions taken, lack of Bidder responsiveness or other failure to close contract negotiations that are not caused by the State, the State may, in its discretion, offer a successful Bidder a shorter contract term.
14.3 Firms that contend a lack of flexibility because of corporate policy on a particular negotiation item shall face a significant disadvantage and may not be considered.  
14.4 Terms, conditions, prices, methodology, or other features of the Bid may be subject to negotiations and subsequent revision.  As part of the negotiations, the Bidder may be required to submit supporting financial, pricing, and other data in order to allow a detailed evaluation of the feasibility, reasonableness, and acceptability of the Bid.
14.5 Requirements and any terms marked as non-negotiable after the section title shall not be negotiable and shall remain unchanged unless the State determines that a change in such requirements or terms is in the best interest of the State.  
14.6 [bookmark: _Toc386628788]The State may request a BAFO and shall determine the scope and subject of any BAFO request.  However, the Bidder should not expect an opportunity to otherwise strengthen its Bid and should submit its best Bid based on requirements herein.  Any information offered outside the scope of the BAFO request will not be considered and will be disregarded.
15 [bookmark: _Toc474321211][bookmark: _Toc255833725]Award of Contract
15.1 The State may award the contract to more than one Bidder by awarding the contract(s) by item or groups of items or may award the contract on an all or none basis, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of the State.
15.2 In order to receive an award or payments from the State, a Bidder must be registered as both a Bidder and as a Supplier and must maintain the registration prior to any Contract renewal term.  The registration process may be completed electronically at the following link: https://omes.ok.gov/services/purchasing/vendor-registration.

15.3 Pursuant to Oklahoma Attorney General Opinion No. 06-23, any Bidder that has assisted in preparing the Solicitation or developing the procurement terms, either directly or indirectly, is precluded from being awarded the Contract or from securing a sub-contractor that has provided such services.
15.4 Prior to award, the State may choose to request information from the Bidder to demonstrate its financial status and performance.  If the Bidder is a subsidiary of another entity, the last three years audited financial statements of three years tax returns for the parent company may also be required.  The State reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to determine a Bidder’s financial status and to withhold award to a Bidder who is not deemed financially responsible.
15.5 A notice of award may be in the form of a purchase order or other payment mechanism or in the form of a mutually executed contract.



BID PACKET SECTION FOUR:  REQUESTED EXCEPTIONS TO TERMS
SOLICITATION NO. 0900000435

	

	Term & Section
	Language

	General Terms, Pricing
(Section 5.2, pg. 7)
EXAMPLE
	Section 5.2 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.40, all travel expenses of Supplier must be included in the total Acquisition price.  Travel expenses include, but are not limited to, lodging, transportation and meal expenses.


	Information Technology Terms, Appendix 1, Data Security
(Section B.2, pg. 12)
EXAMPLE

	Section B.2 shall be modified to add the following:


Customer is responsible for Personal Data encryption when solely in the Customer’s possession. 


	Information Technology Terms, Source Code Escrow 
(Section 9, pg. 5)
EXAMPLE

	Section 9 is deleted in its entirety.
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